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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ’
To The Members of Rising Stars Mobile India Private Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Rising Stars Mobile India Private
Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2020, and the
Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Cash Flow
Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and a summary
of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given
to us, the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity
with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with
the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS") and
other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the
Company as at March 31, 2020, and its profit, its cash flows and the changes in equity for
the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing specified under section 143(10) of the Act (SAs). Our responsibilities under those
Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with
the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI)
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the
ICAI's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon
The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Board's Report and related annexures,

but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of
our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.
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If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement
of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of
the Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair
view of the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income,
cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the Ind AS and other
accounting principles generally accepted in India. This responsibility also includes
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation
and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for
ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the financial statement that give a true and fair view and
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either
intends to liguidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but
to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial
reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgmeﬁt and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

« Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
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» Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section
143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the
Company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

« Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the management.

« Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to
continue as a going concern.

» Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually
or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably
knowledgeable user of the financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative
materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in
evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified
misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best
of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive
Income, the Statement of Cash Flows and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with
by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of account

In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified
under Section 133 of the Act.
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e)

f)

g)

h)

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on
March 31, 2020 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is
disqualified as on March 31, 2020 from being appointed as a director in terms of
Section 164(2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial
reporting of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to
our separate Report in "Annexure A”. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion
on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial
controls over financial reporting.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in
accordance with the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended,

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us, the Company being a private company, section 197 of the Act related
to the managerial remuneration is not applicable.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as
amended in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations which would
impact its financial position.

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative
contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses.

iii.  There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company

2. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by
the Central Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in "Annexure B”
a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

For Deloitte Haskins and Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No. 117366W/W-100018)

Gee;a@:r::r; é -

Membership No. 29519
UDIN: 20029519AAAAFAL1613

Place: Chennai
Date: 30 November 2020
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ANNEXURE "“A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT
(Referred to in paragraph 1(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause
(i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act")

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Rising Stars
Mobile India Private Limited (“"the Company”) as of March 31, 2020, in conjunction with
our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on “the internal control over financial reporting criteria established
by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India”. These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence
to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds
and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting of the Company based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act,
2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and
the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls
over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated
effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of
the internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing
the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating
effectiveness of internal contral based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend
on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement
of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained, is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over
financial reporting.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial
reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the
company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of
any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are
subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system
over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were
operating effectively as at March 31, 2020, based on “the criteria for internal financial control
over financial reporting established by the Company considering the essential components
of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India”.

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No.117366W/W-100018)

Geet uryana
% ner
Membership No. 29519
UDIN: 20029519AAAAFA1613

Place: Chennai
Date: 30 November, 2020
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ANNEXURE “"B” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT
(Referred to in paragraph 2 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’
section of our report of even date)

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars,
including quantitative details and situation of the property, plant and
equipment.

(b) The property, plant and equipment were physically verified during the year
by the Management in accordance with a programme of verification, which in
our opinion provides for physical verification of all the property, plant and
equipment at reasonable intervals. According to the information and
explanations given tc us, no material discrepancies were noticed on such
verification.

(c) The company does not have any immovable properties of land and buildings
which are freehold and hence reporting under clause (i) of CARO 2016 is not

applicable.

The inventories were physically verified during the year by the Management at
reasonable intervals and no material discrepancies were noticed during physical
verification.

The Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms,
Limited Liability Partnerships or other parties covered in the register maintained
under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has not granted any loans, made investments or provided guarantees and
hence, reporting clause (iv) of CARO 2016 is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
accepted any deposit during the year and hence compliance with the provisions of
Section 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the
Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014, as amended, with regard to the
deposits accepted is not applicable to the company.

The maintenance of cost records has been specified by the Central Government under
section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, in respect of specified products of the
Company. We have broadly reviewed the cost records maintained by the Company
pursuant to the Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014, as amended
prescribed by the Central Government under sub-section (1) of Section 148 of the
Companies Act, 2013, and are of the opinion that, prima facie, the prescribed cost
records have been made and maintained. We have, however, not made a detailed
examination of the cost records with a view to determine whether they are accurate or

complete.
According to the information and explanations given to us, in respect of statutory dues:

(a) The Company has been regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues, including
Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income-tax, Goods and Services
Tax, Customs duty, Cess and other material statutory dues applicable to it to the
appropriate authorities.

(b) There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Provident Fund,
Employees’ State Insurance, Income-tax, Goods and Services Tax, Customs duty,
Cess and other material statutory dues in arrears as at March 31, 2020 for a period
of more than six months from the date they became payable.
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(viii)

(ix)

(x)

(xi)

(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv)

(c) Details of dues of Income Tax, Service Tax, Excise Duty, Sales Tax, Value Added
Tax and Goods and Services Tax, Customs duty as on March 31, 2020 on account
of disputes are given below.

Name of the | Nature of | Forum Period to | Amount (Rs
Statute Dues where which in Lakhs).
dispute is | amount
pending Relates
Customs Act, | Customs Duty | CESTAT 2018-19 11,584.12°
1962 Appeal

* Net of Rs. 670.56 Lakhs paid under protest

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has not defaulted in the repayment of loans to banks.

The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public
offer (including debt instruments) or term loans and hence reporting under clause
(ix) of the CARO 2016 is not applicable.

To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given
to us, no fraud by the Company or no material fraud on the Company by its officers or
employees has been noticed or reported during the year.

The Company is a private Company and hence the provisions of Section 197 of the
Companies Act, 2013 do not apply to the company.

The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause (xii) of the
CARO 2016 is not applicable.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company is in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Companies Act, 2013, where
applicable, for all transactions with the related parties and the details of related party
transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements etc. as required by the
applicable accounting standards.

According to the information and explanation given to us, the company has made
private placement of shares during the year under review.
In respect of the above issue, we report that:

a. the requirement of Section 42 of the Companies Act, 2013, as applicable,
have been complied with; and

b. the amounts raised have been applied by the Company during the year for
the purposes for which the funds were raised, other than temporary
deployment pending application.
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(xv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, during
the year the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its
directors or persons connected with them and hence provisions of section 192 of the
Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable.

(xvi) The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve
Bank of India Act, 1934.

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No.117366W/W-100018)

9

Place: Chennai
Date: 30 November, 2020



Rislng Stars Moblie India Privata Limited
Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2020
(ANl amounts In INR Lakhs, excent share data or as otherivise stated]
As at As at
Particulars Note MNo. 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Rs. Rs.
A [ASSETS
1 |Non-Current Assets
(a) Property, plant and equipment S5A 71,271.54 73.845.25
(b) Right of use assets 5B 5,314.23 -
(c) Capital work-In-progress 7,494.47 4,482 14
{d) Financial assets
(i) Cther financial assets 6 5,966.54 4,650.55
{e) Non-current tax assets (net) 7 7,810.18 17,755.91
(f) Deferred tax assets (net) 36.4 1,888.93 =
{g) Other non-current assets 8 640.45 777.18
Total non-current assets 1,00,396.34 1,01,511.00
2 |[Current Assets
{a) Inventories 9 2,18,978.85 3.09,639.86
(b) Financial assets
(i) Trade receivables 10 3,76,692.97 3,59,304.81
(it} Cash and cash esquivalents 11 1,14,634.57 62,515.16
(1) Loans i2 1,563.30 246.74
(v} Other financlal assets i3 1,144.31 910.21
{c) Other current assets 14 48,704.90 48,398.23
Total current assets 7,61,918.90 7,81 615.01
Total Assets glg&ggsu Q!Q‘iﬁ.ﬂl
B |EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
1 [Equity
(a) Equity share capital 15 2,38,094.50 1,66,594.50
(b} Other equity 29,283.31 (9,680.46)
Total Equity 2,67,387.81 1,56,914.04
2 {Non-current liabilitles
(a) Financial liabilities
(i) Lease Liabilities 34 4,499,59 -
(b) Provisions 16 664.98 454.89
{c} Other non-current fiabilities 17 = 204.79
Total non-current llabilities 5,164.57 659.68
3 |Current Habilitles
(a) Financial liabilities
(1) Borrowings 18 = 1,06,620.12
(ii) Lease Liabllities 34 599,54
(iii} Trade payables 19
(A) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small 122.80 76.56
enterprises (Refer Note 30.2)
{B)total outstanding of dues and creditors other than micro 5,64,243.44 5,85,980.54
enterprises and small enterprises .
(iv) Other financial liabilities 20 2,938.44 11,105.79
(b} Provisions 21 835.45 352.70
{c} Cther Current liabilities 22 20,623.19 21,416.58
Total current liabilities 5,89,762.86 7,25,552.29
Total Liabliities 5.94,927.43 7,26,211.97
Total Equity and Liabilities 86231526 98312601
See accompanying notes to the financial statements
In terms of our report attached
For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP For and on behaif of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants Riging Stars Mobile India Private Limited
— ‘//L/
( Lo s =
tha Suryanarayanan u en Liang R chandran K th
ector Director Company Secretary
Piace : Chennal Place : Talwan Place : Chennai
Date : November 30, 2020 Date : November 20 Date : November 30, 2020 Date : November 30, 2020




Rising Stars Mobile India Private Limited
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31.March 2020
(All amounts in INR Lakhs, except share data or as othenwise stated)
Niia 20 For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars 2 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Rs. Rs.
1 |Revenue from operations 23 26,63,555.84 34,34,538,89
2 |Other income 24 3,376.82 4,698.42
3 [Total Income (1+2) 26,66,932.66 34,39,237.31
4 Expenses
(a) Cost of materlals consumed 25 24,66,545.95 32,96,382.70
(b) Changes in inventorles of finished goods and 26 23,264.24 (29,600.49)
work-in-progress
{c) Employee benefits exp 27 27,575.41 29,296.62
{d) Finance costs 28 2,812.56 6,256.01
{e) Depreclation and amaortisation expense 5 22,554.42 13,515.46
(f) Other Expenses 29 76,842.60 1,44,385.41
Total Expenses 26,19,595.18 34,60,235.71
5 |Profit before tax (3 - 4) 47,337.48 (20,998.40)
6 |Tax expense:
(a) Current tax 10,266.21 &
(b} Deferred tax (net) (1,900.06) 1,154.61
B,366.15 1,154.61
7  |Profit/(Loss) For The Year (5 - 6) 38,971.33 (22,153.01)
8 |Other i ive i
A (i) Ttems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
(a) rem of the defined benefit plans 3.75 {39,95)|
3.75 (39.95)
(ii} Incomne tax relating to iterns that will not be (1.31) 13.96
reclassified to profit or loss
Total other comprehensive income 2.44 (25.99)
9 [Total comprehensive i /(Loss) (7 + 8) 38.973.77 (22,179.00),
10 |Earnings Per Share
- Basic (Face Value of Rs. 100 each) 35 20.78 (15.70)
- Diluted (Face Value of Rs. 100 each) 20.78 (15.70)
See accompanying notes to the financlal statements
In terms of our report attached
For Deloitte Haskins & Selis LLP For and on bejfalf of-the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants Rising Stars’ Moliile India Private Limited
. o =
a Suryanarayanan Yang Shu Hul Liu Chien Liang Ri handran K t
Director Director Company Secretary
Place : Chennal Place : Chennal Place : Talwan Place : Chennal
{Date : November 30, 2020 Date : November 30, 2020 Date : November 30, 2020 Date : November 30, 2020




Rising Stars Mobile India Private Limited
Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31 March 2020

]

[All smounts In INR. Lakhs, exceot shara data or a4 otherwise stated)

uryanarayanan Yang Shu Hul
r Director
Flace : Chennai Place : Chennai
Date ;. November 30,2020 Date ; 2

1 For the year Por the year
ended ended
Patiders 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Rs. Rs.
1. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
TLoss}/ Profit befora tax 47,337 .48 120,598.40})
Adjustrments far
Degreciation and Amertisation Expanse 22,554.42 13,515,486
Interest and Finance Charges paid (including interest towards leass liabitities! 2,812.55 §,256.01
Loss on Proparty, Plant & Equipment Sold / Scrapped / Written off (Met) 369.53 1,032.77
Interest Income frem Bank Deposits & Cthers (3,376.82) (4,349,491
Provision for VAT Incentive - 125.32
Unrealised Exchange Loss / (gain) (net) 9,014.78 {13,942.04)
Operating Profit Before Working Capltal/Other Changes 78,711,896 (18,460.37)
Adjustarents for (increase )fdecrease in operating assets:
Inventories 90,661.01 8,588.33
Trade Recelvables (17,588.18) 51,659.07
Other Non Currant Flancial Assets {1,315.99) 270.63
Laans (Current Financial Assats) (716,56} {22.07)
Other Current Flnancial Assets [234.10) (315.71)
Qther Current and Non Current Assats [169.97) 31,385.15
Adjustments for increasef(decrease) in on g haili
Trade Payables {30,694, 37) {1,61,096.95)
Other Financial Liabilities (Current) (8,167.35) 5,902.74
Other Liabilities (Current and Non-Current) (708.39) (5.422.17)
Provisions (Current and Non-Current) 692.84 456.07
Cash Generated from/ (Used in) Operations 1,10,472.91 (46,045,28)
Diract Taxes Paid {nat) {321.78) {10.4465.40)
Net Cash Generated from/ (Used In) Operating Activities 1,310,151 13 (56,491.69)
IL CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Capital Expenditure (including capital advances, net of Payabies an
purchase of Property, Plant & Equipment) - Net (R0.545.45) i)
Loans Given i (400.00)
Depesit Balances not considersd as Cash & Cash eguivalents - 120.00
Interast Recelved on Bank Deposits 3.376.82 4,430.45
Met Cash Used in Investing Activities . (17,169.03) _{53,652.58)|
III. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Repayment of Short Term Borrawings {net) (1,06,620,12) -
Proceeds from fssue of equity shares 71,500.00 36,802.50
Proceeds from barrawings [Net) = 1,06,620.12
Fayment of Lease Liabilities {3,476.65) -
Interest and Finance Charges paid {including interest towards leasa liabilities) (2,265.92) (B.053.74)!
Net Cash (Used In)/ Generated from Financing Activities (40,862.89) 1.37,368.898
IV. Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivaients 82,119.41 27,184.61
(T + IT + 111}
¥. Cash and Cash atthe inning of the Year 62,515.16 35,3310.56
V1. Cash and Cash Equlvalents at the End of the Year (Refer Note 114} 1,14,634.57 62,515.17
VIL Reconciliation for Cash and Cash Equivaients 1,15,634.57 62,515.16
{a) Cash on Hand 0.45 0.52
(b) Balances with Banks
(i) In Current Accounts 3,134,12 5,814.64
{#) In Deposit Accounts
Original maturlty less than 3 months 1,111,500 00 56,700.00
114,634 57 62,515,186 |
See accompanying notas to the financial statements |
In terms of our report attached
For Deloltte Haskins & Selis LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directars
&wﬁmd Acgourital ~ R Stars Mohile rivate Limited
_e

Liu Chien Liang
Director

Place : Taiwan
Dote : Novembe

Ramachandran Kunnath
Company Secretary

i Channal

Place
Datp
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Rising Stars Mobile India Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020
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Corporate information

Rising Stars Mobile India Private Limited ("the Company™) was incorporated on May 1, 2015 with its principal place of business in Andhra Pradesh, India. The Company is in the
business of manufacturing mobile phones. The Company operates in Sricity, Andhra Pradesh; Navi Mumbai Maharastra and Sunguvachatram, Tamil Nadu and caters to the domestic
mohile market.

Significant accounting Policies

Statement of Compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under the Section 133 of the 2013 Act read with the Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules 2015 and other relevant provisions of the 2013 Act.

Except for the changes below, the Company has consistently applied accounting policies to all pericds.

Ind AS 12 Appendix C, Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments : On March 30, 2019, Ministry of Corporate Affairs has notified Ind AS 12 Appendix C, Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments which is to be applied while performing the determination of taxable prafit (or less), tax bases, unused tax losses, unusad tax credits and tax rates, when there is
uncertainty over income tax treatments under Ind AS 12, According to the appendix, companies need to determine the probability of the relevant tax authcrity accepting each tax
treatment, or aroup of tax treatments, thal the companies have used or plan to use in their income tax filing which has to ba censidered to compute the most likely amount or the
expected value of the tax treatmant when detarmining taxable profit (tax loss), tax bases, unused tax lesses, unused tax credits and tax rates,

The standard permits two possible methods of transition:

i) Full ratrospective approach — Under this approach, Appendix C will be applied retrospectively to each prior reporting period presented in accordance with Ind AS 8 - Accounting
Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors, without using hindsight

ii) Retrospectively with cumulative effect of initially applying Appendix C recognized by adjusting equity on initial application, without adjusting comparatives, The affective date far
adoption of Ind AS 12 Appendix C is annual periods beginning an or after April 1, 2019. The Company has evaluated the effect of this amendment on the financial stataments and
concluded that there is no significant impact.

Amendment to Ind AS 12 - Income taxes: On March 30, 2018, Ministry of Corporate Affairs issued amendments to the guidance in Ind AS 12, 'Incomea Taxes', In connection with
accounting for dividend distribution taxes,

The amendment clarifies that an entity shall recognise the income tax conseguences of dividends in profit or loss, other comprehensive income or equity according to where the|
entity criginally recognised those past transactions or events. Effective date for application of this amandment is annual peried beginning on ar after April 1, 2019. The Cempany has|
evaluated the effect of this amendment on the financial statements and concluded that there is no significant impact.

iy Amendment to Ind AS 19 = plan amendment, curtallment or settlement: On March 30, 2019, Ministry of Corporate Affairs issued amendments to Ind AS 19, "Employee Benefits’,
in connection with accounting for plan amendments, curtailments and settlements.

The amendments require an entity:

= to use updated assumgtions to determine current service cost and net interest for the remainder of the period after a plan amendment, curtallment or settlement; and

« to recognise in profit or loss as part of past service cost, or a gain or Inss on settlement, any reduction in a surplus, even if that surplus was not previously recognised because of
the impact of the asset ceiling,

Effective date for application of this amendment is annual period beginning on or after April 1, 2019. The Company has evaluated the effect of this amendment on the financial
statements and concluded that this amendment is currently not applicable.

iii) Effective April 1, 2019, the Company adepted Ind A5 116 "Leasas” and applied the standard to all lease contracts existing on April 1, 2019 resulting In recognition of right of use
assets for an amount of Rs, 8,590.57 Lakhs and measured the lease llabilities at an equal amount as on the date of transition and hence no impact to reserves. Conseguently, the
Company recorded the lzase liability at the present value of the lease payments discounted at the incremental borrowing rate and the right of use asset an amount equal to the
lease liability, adjusted by the amount of any prepaid or accrued lease payments relating to that lease recognised in the balance sheet immediately before the date of initial
application. Comparatives as at and for the year ended March 31, 2019 have not been retrospectively adjusted and therefore will continue to be reported under the accounting
policies included as part of our Annual Report for year ended March 31, 2020,

Basis of Preparation and Presentation

These financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis, except for certain financial instruments which are measured at fair values at the end of each reporting
period, as explained in accounting policies below. Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid te transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date, regardless
of whether that price is directly ubservable or estimated using ancther valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an assat or a liability, the Company takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability If market participants would take those characteristics into account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measuraments are categorised into Level 1, 2, or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements
are ohservable and the significance of the inputs ta the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are described as fallows:

(i) Level 1 inputs are quated prices [unadjusted) in active markats for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the measurement date;
Lewvel 2 inputs are other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and
i) Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability,

Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

The cost of raw materials, components, consumable stares and spare parts and stock in trade are determined on a weightad average basis.

Cost includes freight, taxes and duties and other charges incurred for bringing the goods to the present location and condition and s net of credit under the cenvat scheme and
VAT/GST, where applicable.

The valuation of manufactured finished goods and work-in-progress includes the combined cost of material, labour and manufacturing overheads incurred in bringing the goods to the
prasent location and condition.

Due allowance is estimated and made by the Managament for slow moving/ non-moving (tems and defective tems of inventory, wherever necessary, basad on the past experience
and such allowances are adjusted against the carrying inventory value.
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2.4

2.6

Cash and Cash Equivalents (for the purpose of Cash Flow Statement)

Cash comprises cash on hand and demand deposits Ivith banks. Cash equivalents are short-term balances (with an original maturity of three months or less from the date of
acquisition), highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into known ameunts of cash and which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in valug,

Cash Flow Statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whareby prefit [ (loss) befare extrasrdinary items and tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of non-cash nature and any
deferrals or accruals of past or future cash receipts or payments. The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated based on the)
available information.

Revenue Recognition

The Company derives revenue primarily from sale of manufactured mobile phones. Revenue s measured based on the consideration specified in a contract with a customer and
excludes amounts collected on behalf of third parties.

Reverue is recognized upan transfer of control of promised products or services to customers In an amount that reflects the consideration we expect to receive in exchange for those
products or services. Revenue (5 reduced for estimated customer returns, rebates and cther similar allowances.

Reverues and costs relating to sales contracts are recognized as the related goods are delivered,and titles have passed, at which time all the following conditions are satisfied-:

- the Company has transferred to the buyer the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods;

- the Company retains nelther continuing managerial involvement to the degree usually associated with ownership nor effective control over the gasds sold;

= the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

- it is probable that tha ecanomic benefits associated with the transaction will flew to the company ; and

- the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transactions can be measured reliably.

"The Company accounts for volume discounts and pricing incentives to custemers 3s 2 raduction of revenue based on the ratable aflocation of the discounts/ incentives to each of the
underlying perfarmance obligatien that corrasponds to the progress by the customer towards earning the discount/ incentive. Also, when the level of discount varies with increases in
levels of revenue transactions, the Company recognizes the liability based on its estimate of the customer's future purchases. If it is probable that tha criteria for the discount will not
be met, ar if the amount thereof cannot be estimatad rellably, then discount Is not recognized until the payment is probable and the amount can be estimated reliably. The Company
recognizes changes in the estimated amount of obligations for discounts in the period in which the change occurs.

Other Claims

Recovery claims are accounted for as and when there is no uncertainty in realizing the same.

Interest Income
Interast income fram a financial asset |s recognised when it is probable that economic benefits will flow to the Company and the amount of income can be measured reliably.

Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference ta the principal outstanding and the effective interest rate applicable. The effective interest rate methed is a methed of)
calculating the amertised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts (including all fess and points paid or recaived that form part of an integral part of the effective interest, transaction costs and other premium or discounts)
threugh the expected life of the debt instrument, or where appropriate, a shorter peried, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition,
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2.7

Property, Plant and Equipment ("PPE")

Land and buildings held for use in the production or supply of goods or services, or for administrative purposes, are stated in the balance sheet at cost less accumulated depreciation
and accumulated impairment losses, If any. Freehold land is not depreciated.

Cost of Propertles includes Import duties and non-refundable taxes, professional fees and, for qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalised in accordance with the Company's
accounting policy. Such properties are classified to the appropnate categories of property, plant and eguipment when completed and ready for intendad use. Depreciation of these
assets, on the same basis as other property assets, commences when the assets are ready for their intended use. Fixtures and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses,

&ny part or components of Property, Plant and Equipment which are separately identifiable and expected to have & useful life which is different from that of the main assets are
capitalised saperately, based on the technical 1ent of the n

Cost of medifications that enhance the operating performance ar extend the useful life of Property, Plant and Equipment are also capitalised, whera there is a certainty of deriving
future econamic benefits from the use of such assets.

Capital Work-in-Frograss:
Properties in the course of construction for production, supply or administrative purposes are carried at cost, less any recognised impairment loss.

Depreciati

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided on the straight-line method, pro-rata from the month of capitalisation over the period of use of the assets, assessed as)
below:

Particulars Useful Lives
Plant and Equipments
- Jigs and Fixtures 1 Year to 2 Years
- Others 3 Years to 10 Years
Furniture and Fittings 5 Years
Office and Othar Equipments 5 Years
Data Processing Equipments 3 Years to 5 Years
Leasehold Improvemants Amortised over the primary lease pariod or estimatad useful life, whichever Is less

Individual PPE costing less than Rs. 20,000 each are depreciated in the month of purchase considering the type and usage pattern of these assets.

The useful lives mentioned above are different from the useful lives specified for these assets, where applicable, as per Schedule 11 of the Companies Act, 2013. The useful lives|
followed in respect of these assets are based an Management's assessment, based on technical advice, taking into account factors such as the nature of the assets, the estimated
usage pattern of the assets, the operating conditions, past history of replacement, anticipated technological changes, manufacturers warranties and maintenance suppert, etc.

Depreciation is accelerated on Property, Plant and Equipment, based an their eondition, usability, etc. as per the technical estimates of the Management, where necessary.

I £ p i A

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecegnised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or
loss on disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment (s determinad as the difference between the sale proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss,
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2.8

2.9

Foreign Currencies

In preparing the finangial statements of the Company, transactions in currencies other than the entity's functional currency (foreign currencies) are recognised at the rates of
exchange prevailing at the dates of transactions. At the end of each reporting period, menetary items denuminated in foreian currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at
that date. Non-menetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are retransiated at the date the fair value was determined, Non-monetary items that
are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not ratranslated.

Exchange differences on monetary itams are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which they arise, except for exchange differences on foreign currency
borrawings relating to assets under canstruction for future productive use, which are included in the cost of those assels when they are regarded as an adjustment to interest cost on
those foreign currency borrowings.,

Government Grants and Export Benefits

Government grants are not recognised until thers is reasonable assurance that the Company will comply with the conditions attaching to them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss on a systematic basis over the periods In which the Company recognises as expenses the related costs fer|
which the grants are intended to compensate. Spacifically, government grants whose primary condition s that the Company should purchase, construct or otherwise acquire non-
current assets are recognised as deferred revenue in the balance sheet and transfarred to the Statement of Profit and Loss on & systematic and rational basis.

Government grants that ars receivable as compensation for expanses or losses already incurred or for the purpose of giving immediate financial suppeort to the Company with no
future related costs are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which they became receivable,

The benefic of 3 governmant loan at a below-market rate interest is treated as a government grant, measured as the difference between the proceeds received and the fair value of]
the loan based an prevailing market interest rates,

Export benefits in the nature of duty drawback are recoanised |n the Statemeant of Profit and Loss in the year of exports based on eligibility/expected eligibllity duly censidering the
entitlernents as per the policy, industry specific developments, Interpretations arising out of judicial/regulatery proceedings where applicable, management assessment etc. and when
there is no uncertainty in receiving the same.

Export benefits in the nature of Merchandise Experts from Indla Scheme (MEIS) under Foreign Trade Policy are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Lass when thera s no
uncertainty in receiving / utilizing the same, taking into consideration the prevailing regulations.

Adjustments, if any, to the amounts recognised in accordance with the accounting policy, based on final determination by the authorities, are dealt with appropriately in the year of
final detarmination and acceptance.

Financial Instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the cantractual provisions of the instruments.

Financial assets and financial lizbilities are initially measured at fair value, Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities {other than financia! assets and financial lizbllities at fair value through profit or less) are added te or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transactian costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss
are recognised immediately In the statement of profit and loss.

Financial Assets

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assats are recognised and derecognised on & trade date basis, Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets
that require delivery of assets within the time frame established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.
All recognised financial assets are subsequently measured in their entirety at either amortised cost or fair value, depending on the classification of the financial assets.
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Classification of financial assets:
Financial instruments that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at amertised cost {except for debt instruments that are designated as at fair valua through profit
or [oss on initial recognition):

« the asset is held within a business model whose objectiva is to hold assets in ordar to collect contractual cash flows; and
« tha contractual tarms of the instrumeant give rise an speacified datas to cash flows that are solzly payments of principal and intzrest on the principal amount outstanding,

Financial instruments that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at fair value threugh other comprehensive Income (FYTOCI) (except for debt instruments that
are designated as at fair value through profit or loss on initial recagnition):

» the asset is held within a business medel whose objective is achieved both by zollacting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets; and
= the contractual terms of the Instrument give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal ameunt autstanding.

Changes in the carrylng amount of FYTGCT manatary financial assets relating to changes in foreign currency rates are recognised in profit or loss. Other changes in the carrying
amount of FYTOCI financial assets are recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated under the heading of 'Reserve for debt instruments through ather compreheansive
income’. When the investmant is disposed off or is determined to be impaired, the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in this reserve is reclassified to profit or loss,

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value,

Impairment of financial assets:

The Company applies the expected credit loss model for recegnising impairment less on financial assets measured at amotised cost, trade receivables and other contractual rights to
receive cash or cther financial asset.

Expectad credit losses are the weighted average of credit losses with the respective risks of default occuring 2s the weights, Credit less Is the differance batween all cantractual cash
flows that are due to the Company in actordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Company expects to receive (i.e. all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original
effective interest rate (or credit-adjusted effective interest rate for purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets). The Company estimates cash flows by considering all
contractual terms of the financial instrument (for axample, prepayment, extension, call and similar options) through the expected life of the financial instrument.

The Company measures the loss allowance for & financial instrument at an amount equal to the life-time expected credit losses if the credit risk on that financial instrument has
increased significantly since initial recognition. If the credit risk on the financial instrument has not increased significantly since initial recognition, the Company measures the loss
allowance for that financial instrument at an amount equal to 12-month expected credit losses. 12-month expacted credit losses are portion of the life-time expected credit losses
and represent the life-time cash shortfalls that will result IF the default occurs within the 12 months after reparting date and thus, ara not cash shortfalls that are predicted over the
next 12 months.

If the Company measures the loss allowance for a financial instrument at lifetime expected credit loss model in the previous period, but determines at the end of & reporting period
that the cradit risk has not increased significantly since initial recognition due to improvement in credit quality as compared to the previous period, the Company again measures the)
loss allowance based on 12-month expected credit losses.

When making the assessment of whether thera has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, the Company uses the change in risk of default accuring over the
expected life of the financial instrument instead of the change in the amount of expected credit losses, To make that assessment, the Company compares the risk of a default|
occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of initial recognition.

For trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or ether financial asset that result from transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 18, the Company always
measures the loss allowance at an amount equal Lo lifetime expected credit iosses.
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Financial Liabilities at FYyTPL:
Financial liabilities are classified a5 at FVTPL when the financial liability is sither held for trading or it is designated as at FVTPL,

A financial liability is classified as held for trading if:
+ it has been incurred principally for the purpose of repurchasing it in the near term; or

« on initial recognition it is part of a partfolio of identifizd financial instruments that the Company manages tegsther and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

A financial liakility cther than a financial liability held for trading may be designated as at FYTPL upan initial recognition if:
» such designation aliminates or significantly reduces a measurament or racognition inconsistency that would otherwise arise; or

« the financial liability forms part of a group of financial assets or financial liabilities or both, which is managed and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance
with the Company's documented risk managemant or investment strategy, and information about the grouping is provided internally on that basis;

Financial liabilities at FYTPL are stated at fair value, with any gains or lnsses arising on remeasurement recognisad In the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Financial liabilities subsequsntly ed at amortised cost:

Financial liabilities that are nat held-for-trading and are not designated as at FVTPL are measured at amortised cost at the end of subsequent accounting periads. The carrying
amounts of financial liabilities that are subsequently measured at amortised cost are determined based on the effective interest method, Interest expense that is not capitalised as
part of costs of an asset is included in the *finance costs’ line item.

The effective interest methed is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest expense over the relevant period. The effective Interest
rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments (including all feas and paints paid or receivad that form an integral part of the effective Interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the financial liability, or (where appropriste) a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial
recognition.

For financizl liabilities that are dencminated in a foreign currency and measured at amortised cost at the end of each reparting period, the foreign exchange gains and losses are
determined based on amortised cost of the instruments and are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss,

The falr value of the financial liabilities denominated in a foraign currency is determined in that foreign currency and translated at the spat rate at the end of the reparting period. For
financial liabilities that are measured at FUTPL, the foreign exchange component farms part of the fair value gains or losses recognised in the Statement of profit and Loss.

i ial liabiliti
The Company derecognises financial liabilities whan, and only when, the Campany’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or they expire. The difference between the carrying amount
of the finzncial liability derecognised and the cansideration paid and payabie is recognised the Statement of Profit and Loss.
EF ng:

Einancial assets and financlal liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the balance sheet when, and only when, the Company currantly has a legally enforceable right to
set off amounts and it indents either to settle them on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
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2.13

2.14

Employee Benefits

.
i : il rmination benefi

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans are recognised as an expense when emplayees have rendered service entitling them to the contributions.

For dafined benefit retirement benefit plans, the cost of providing benefits is determined using the projected unit credit method, with actuarial valuations being carried gut at the end
of each annual reporting pericd, Remeasurement, comprising actuarial gains and losses, the effact of the changes to the asset ceiling (if applicable) and the return on plan assets
qexdudmg net interest), is reflected immediately in the balance sheer with a charge er credit recognised in other comprehensive income in the period in which they occur.

emant recognised in other comprahensive income is refllectad immeadiately in retained eamnings and is not reclassified to profit or |oss. Past service cost is recognised in the
Statement of profit or loss in the period of a plan amendment. Nat interest is calculated by applying the discount rate at the beginning of the period to the net defined banefit liability
or asset, Defined benefit costs are categorised as feollows:

= Service cost (including current service cost, past sarvice cost, as well 25 gains and lossas an curtallments and settlements);
« Met intersst expanse or income; and
* Remeasurement

The Company presents the first twa components of definad banefit costs in profit or loss in the line (tem "Employee benefits expense’. Curtailment gains and losses are accounted for
as past service cosls.

The retirement banefit obligation recognised in tha balance sheet represents the actual deficit or surplus in the Company's defined benefit plans, Any surpius resulting frem this
calculation is limited to the present value of any ecenomic benefits available in the form of refunds from the plans or reductions in future contributions te the plans.

A liability for a termination benefit is recognised at the earlier of when the entity can no longer withdraw the offer of the termination benefit and when the entity recognises any
related rastructuring costs.

hort-term an her long-tarm empl nafi
A liakility is recognised for benefits accruing to employees in respect of wages and salaries in the pericd the related service is rendered at the undiscounted amount of the benefits
expected to be paid in exchange for that servica.

Liabilities recagnised in respect of short-term emplovee bensfits are measured at the undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the related service,

Liabilities in respect of other long-term employee benefits are measured at the present value of the estimated future cash outflows expected ta be made by the Company in respect
of services provided by employees upto the reporting date.

Leases

The Company's lease asset classes primarlly consist of leases for land and buildings. The Company assesses whether a contract contains a lease, at inception of a contract. A contract|
is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a perind of time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identfied asset, the Company assesses whether: (1) the contract invelves the use of an identified asset (i) the Company has substantially
all of the economic benafits from use of the asset through the pericd of the lease and (iii) the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset.

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognizes a right-of-use asset (*ROU") and a corresponding lease liability for all lease arrangements in which it is a lessee,
except for leases with a term of twelve months or less (short-term leases) and low value leases. For these short-term and low value leases, the Company racognizes the lease
payments as an operating expeansa on a stralght-line basis ovar the term of the lease.

Certain lease arrangaments includes the options to extend or terminate the |ease before the end of the lease term. ROU assets and lease liabilities includes these options when it Is
reasonahly certain that they will be exercised.

The right-of-use assets are initially recognized at cost, which comprises the imitial amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or prior to the
commencement date of the lease plus any initial direct costs less any lease incentives. They are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and useful |ife of the underlying asset. Right of use
assals are evaluated for recoverability wh svents or changes in circumstances indicate that thelr carrying amounts may not be recoverable. For the purpese of impairment
tasting, the recoverable amount (i.e. the higher of the fair value less cost to sell and the value-in-use) is determined on an individual asset basis unless Lhe asset does not generate
cash flows that are largely independent of those from other assets. In such cases, the recoverable amount is determined for the Cash Generating Unit (CGU) to which the asset
belongs.

The lease liability is initially measured at amortized cost at the present value of the future lease payments. The lease payments are discountad using the interest rate implicit in the
lease or, if not readily determinable, using the incremental barrowing rates in the country of domicile of these leases. Lease liabilities are re-measured with a correspanding
adjustrment to the related right of use asset if the Company changes its assessment if whether it will exercise an extension or a termination option.

Lease liability and ROU asset have been separately presented in the Balance Sheet and lease payments have been classified as financing cash flows,

Transition:

Effective April 1, 2019, the Company adopted Ind AS 116 “Leases” and applied the standard to all lease contracts existing on April 1, 2019 resulting in recognition of right of use
assets for an amaunt of Rs. 8,590.57 Lakhs and measured the |ease lizbilities at an equal amount as on the date of transition and hence nc impact to reserves, Consequently, the
Company recorded the lease liability at the present value of the lease payments discounted at the Incremental borrowing rate and the right of use assel an amount equal to the
lzase liability, adjusted by the amount of any prepaid or accrued lease payments relating to that lease recognised in the balance sheet immediately befere the date of initial
application,

Comparatives as at and for the year ended March 31, 2019 have not been retrospectively adjusted and therefore will continue o be reperted under the accounting policies included
as part of our Annual Report for year ended March 31, 2020.
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Earnings per Share

Basic earnings per share is camputed by dividing the peofit / (loss) after tax (including the post tax effect of extraordinary items, if any) by the weighted average number of equity
shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit / (less) after tax {including the post tax effect of extracrdinary items, If any) as adjusted for dividend, interest and
other tharges to expense or income relating to the dilutive potential equity shares, by the weighted average number of equity shares considered for deriving basic earnings per share
and the weighted average number of equity shares which could have been issuad on the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares. Potential equity shares are deemed o be
dilutive anly if their conversion to equity shares would decrease the net profit per share from continuing ordinary operations. Potential dilutive equity shares are deemed to be
converted as at the beginning of the period, unless they have been issued at a later date. The dilutive potential equity shares are adjusted for the proceeds recelvable had the shares
been actually issued at fair value (i.e, average market value of the outstanding shares). Dilutive potential equity shares are determined independently for gach period presented. The
number of equity shares and potentially dilutive equity shares are adjusted for share splits / reverse share splits and bonus shares, as appropriate.

Taxation

Current Tax:

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from 'profit before tax' as reported in the statement of profit and loss because of items of
income or expense that are taxabla or deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or deductible. The Company's current tax (s calculated using tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reparting period.

Deferred Tax:

Deferred tax is recegnised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are genarally recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary differances to the extent that it is prabable that taxable prefits will be available against which theose deductible temporary differences can be ulilised. Such deferred tax
assets and liabllities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor|
the accounting profit.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting peried and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will
be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recoverad,

Deferred tax liabilities and assels are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability Is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and
tax laws) that have been enactad or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting periad.

The measuremeant of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflacts the tax consequences that would fellow from the manner in which the Company expects, at the end of the reporting
perind, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax for the vear

Current and deferred tax are recognisad in profit or loss, except whan they relate to items that are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the
current and deferred tax are also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

MAT Cradit:

Minimum Alternative Tax ("MAT") credit is recognised as an asset only when and to the extant there is convincing evidence that the Company will pay narmal inzome tax during the
specified period. In the year in which the MAT Credit becomes eligitle to be recognised as an asset, the said asset is created by way of a credit to the Statement of Profit and Loss
and shown as MAT Cradit Entitlement, The Company reviews the same at each Balance Sheet date and writes down the carrying amount of MAT Credit Entitlement to the extent
there is no longer convincing evidence to Lhe effect that the Cemparny will pay nermal Income Tax during the specified period.

Impairment of T and Int

At the end of each reperting peried, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets or cash generating units to determine whether there is any
indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable ameunt of the asset is estimated in order to determine the sxtant of the
impairment lass (if any). When It Is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit to which the asset belongs. When a reasonable and consistent basis of allecation can be identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual cash-genarating units, or
otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating units for which a reasanable and cansistent allocation basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value In use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to thelr prasent value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows
have not been adjusted.
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If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating umit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) s
reduced to its recoverable amaunt. An impairment (054 is recognised immediately in the statement of profit and |oss, unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amaount, in
which case the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation decrease,

Whan an impairmant lass subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or 2 cash-generating unit) is increased to the revised astimate of its recoverable amount, but so
that the increased carrying amount does net exceed the carmrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or cash-
generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in the statement of profit and loss, unless the relevant asset js carried at a revalued
amaunt, In which case the reversal of the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation increase,

Provisions and Contingencies

Provisions are recognized whan the Company has a present obligation (legal/ constructiive) as 2 result of past event, it is probable that the Company will be required to settle the
obligation, and a reliable estimata can be made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recagnised as a provision is the bast estimate of the consideration required to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the
risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When a provision is maasured using the cash flows estimated to settla the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present|
value of those cash flows (when the affect of the time value of money is material),

When some or all of the ecanomic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a third party, a receivable is recognsied as an assat IT it is virtually
certain that reimbursement will be received and the amount of receivable can be measured reliably.

2.19

2.20

w

Contingent Liability:

Contingent liability is disclesed for (i) Possible abligations which will be confirmed enly by future events not wholly within the control of the Company or (i) Present obligations arising
from past events where it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation or 2 reliable estimate ef the amount of the obligation cannat be made.
Contingent assets are not recagnized in the financial statements since this may result in the recognition of income that may never be realized.

Segment Reporting

Cperating segments reflect the Company's managernent structure and the way the financial information (s regularly reviewed by the Company's Chief Operating Decision Maker,
{CODM). The CODM considers the business from both business and product perspective based on the dominant source, nature of risks and returns and the internal organisation and

management structure. The operating segments are the segments for which separate financial information is available and for which gperating profit / (loss) amounts are |
regularly by the executive Management in deciding how to allocate resources and in assessing performance,

Goods and Services Tax Input Credit

Goods and Services tax input credit is accounted for in the books during the period when the underlying service received is accounted and when there is no uncertainty in availing /
utilizing the credits.

Insurance Claims
Insurance claims are accrued for on the basis of claims admitted and to the extent there is no uncertainty in receiving the claims.

Qperating Cycle

Based on the nature of products / activities of the Company and the normal time between acquisition of assets and their realisation in cash or cash equivalents, the Company has)
determined its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of classification of its assets and liabilities as current and non-current.

Critical accounting iudgements and keyv sources of estimation uncertainty

In the application of the Company's accounting policies, which are described in note 3, the Direclars of the Company are required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience
and other factars that are considered to be relevant, Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongaing basis, Ravisions te accounting estimates are recognised in the period In which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if revision affects both currant and future periods.

The fellowing are the significant areas of estimation, uncertainty and critical judgements in applying accounting policies:

Usefu| lives of Proparty, plant and eguipment (Refer Note 2.7)

Provision for taxation (Refer Mote 2,16)

Fair value of financial assats and financial |iabilities (Refer Notes 2.11 and 2.12)

Prewvisien for inventory cbsolescence (Refer Nota 2.3)

Deberiiination of Rincianal cifrenes

Currency of the primary economic environment in which the Company operates (“the functional currency”) is Indian Rupee (INR) in which the company primarily generates and
expends eash. Accordingly, the Management has assessed its functional currency to be Indian Rupee {INR}.
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5B Right of Else Assets

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020
(All amounts in INR Lakhs, except share data or as otherwise stated)

Description of Assets Buildings Total
I - Gross carrying value
As at April 01, 2019 (Refer Note 34) = =
Additions 8,590.57 B8,590.57
Disposals / Adjustments during the year (280.02) (280.02)
As at March 31, 2020 8,310.56 8,310.56
II. Accumulated depreciation and impairment
As at April 01, 2019 * =
Charge for the year 3,122.44 3,122.44
Disposals / Adjustments during the year {126.11) (126.11)
As at March 31, 2020 2,996.33 2,996.33
III. Net Carrying Value
As at 31 March 2020 5,314.23 5,314.23
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Notes to the financial statements for the vear ended 31 March 2020

{All amounts in INR Lakhs, except share data or as otherwise stated)

MNote 6 Other Financial Assets (Non-Current) (Unsecurad, Considered good)

As at 31 March 2020

As at 31 March 2019

Particulars
Rs. Rs.
(a) Security Deposits (at amortised cost) 2,804.55 1,613.88
(b} VAT Incentive Receivable 4,415.57 4,290.25
Less: Provision on VAT Incentive (1,253.58) (1,253.58)
3,161.99 3,036.67
Total 5,966.54 4,650.55

Note 7 Non-Current Tax Assets

As at 31 March 2020

As at 31 March 2019

Particulars
Rs. Rs.
(a) Advance Tax [/ Tax deducted at Source 7,810.18 17,755.91
{Met of Provisions of Rs. 18,848.49 Lakhs (as at March 2019
Rs. 8,581.37 Lakhs)
Total 7,810.18 17,755.91

Note 8 Other Non-current assets (Unsecured, Considered good)

As at 31 March 2020

As at 31 March 2019

Particulars
Rs. Rs.
(a) Capital Advances & 88.90
(b) Prepaid expenses 640,45 688.25
Total 640.45 777.15
Note 9 Inventories
(At Lower of Cost and Net Realisable Value)
Particulars As at 31 March 2020 | As at 31 March 2019
Rs. Rs.
(a) Raw Materials and Components 1,43,812.56 2,27,848.62
(b) Stock-in-transit (Raw Materials) 35,305.35 18,666.06
(c) Work-in-Progress 20,919.36 32,721.56
(d) Finished Goods 18,941.58 30,403.62
Total 2,18,978.85 3,09,639.86
Note 10 Trade Receivables
Particulars As at 31 March 2020 | As at 31 March 2019
Rs. Rs
(a) Secured, Considered Good = =
(b) Unsecured, Considered Good 3,76,892.97 3,59,304.81
3,76,892.97 3,59,304.81
Expected Credit Loss Allowance (Refer Note 10.4 below) -
Total 3,76,892,97 3,59,304.81

10.1 The average credit period on sales of goods is 90 days. No interest is charged on the trade receivables for the
first 90 days from the date of the invoice. Thereafter, interest is charged at 10% per annum on the outstanding

balance.

10.2 Of the trade receivables balance as at March 31, 2020 Rs, 3,76,889.50 (as at March 31, 2019 Rs. 3,59,304.81)
is due from major customers, There are no other customers who represent more than 5% of the total balance of

trade receivables,

10.3 Ageing of Trade Receivables:

As at 31 March 2020

As at 31 March 2019

Rs. Rs.
Within the credit period 3,27,274.57 3,46,918.28
1 - 30 days past due 23,968.85 11,135.81
31 - 60 days past due 5,942.29 987.20
61 - 90 days past due 4,591.96 129.83
More than 90 days past due 15,115.31 133.69
Total 3,76,892.97 3,59,304.81

2019.

10.4 Based on the historical credit loss experience adjusted for forward-looking information, no allowance for
expected credit loss in respect of Trade Receivables is considered necessary as at March 31, 2020 and March 31,
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020
(All amounts in INR Lakhs, except share data or as otherwise stated)

Note 11 Cash and Cash Equivalents

Particulars

As at 31 March 2020

As at 31 March 2019

Rs. Rs.
(a) Cash on Hand 0.45 0.52
(b) Balances with Banks
(i) In Current Accounts 3,134.12 5,814.64
(ii) In Deposit Accounts
Original maturity less than 3 months 1,11,500.00 56,700.00
Total 1,14,634.57 62,515.16

Note 12 Loans (Current Financial Assets)

Particulars

As at 31 March 2020

As at 31 March 2019

Rs. Rs.
(i) Loans to Related Parties (Refer Note 33.2) 1,500.00 800.00
(ii) Advances to employees (unsecured, considered good) 63.30 46.74
Total 1,563.30 846.74

Note 13 Other Financial Assets (Current) (Unsecured, Considered good)

Particulars As at 31 March 2020 | As at 31 March 2019
Rs. Rs.
(a) Interest accrued on loans given to related parties 121.12 51.60
(b) Security deposits 576.64 523.54
(¢) Interest accrued, but not due on Fixed Deposits with 69.70 35.54
banks
(d) Other Receivables 376.86 299.54
Total 1,144.31 910.21
Note 14 Other Current Assets
Particulars As at 31 March 2020 | As at 31 March 2019
Rs. Rs.
(a) Balances Receivable from Government Authorities
(i) Input Tax Credit (GST) 45,597.07 41,131.14
(ii) GST Refund Receivable 708.55 6,349.20
(iii) Deposit with Custom Authorities 670.56 -
46,976.19 47,480.34
(b) Advance to Suppliers 1,655.66 383.05
(c) Prepaid expenses 73.05 534.84
Total 48,704.90 48,398.23
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Rising Stars Mobile India Private Limited
Motes to the financial statements for the year ended 21 March 2020
{All amounts in INR Lakhs, except share data or as otherwise stated)

Mote 16 Provisions (Non-Current),

b Particulars As at 31 March 2020 | As at 31 March 2019
2] Rs. Rs.
(a) Provision for employee benefits:
(i) Provision for Gratuity (Refer Note 31.2) 664.98 454,90
Total 664.98 454.90
Mote 17 Other Non-Current Liabilities
Particulars As at 31 March 2020 | As at 31 March 2019
Rs. Rs.
(a) 'Deferred Rent (Refer Note 34) - 204.79
Total - 204.79
Note 18 Borrowings (Current financial liabilities)
Particulars As at 31 March 2020 | As at 31 March 2019
Rs. Rs.
Buyer's Credit - 1,086,620.12
Total - 1,06,620.12

18.1 Details of Working Capital Facilities from Banks - Unsecured

balances

(&) Amounts repayable to respective banks. Interest of 2,509 - 3.50% per annum is charged on the putstanding loan

{(b) Working capital facilities from Banks includes the proceeds racsived by the Company through buyers credit. Principal and
Interest is repaid by the Company on due date. The tenor of the loan varies 30 Days to a maximum of 90 Days.

Note 19 Trade Payables

Particulars As at 31 March 2020 | As at 31 March 2019
Rs. Rs.
Trade Payables:
(i} Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises 122.80 # 76.56
and small enterprises (Refer Note 30.2)

(ii) Total outstanding dues of creditors other 5,58,626.44 5,77,506.08

than micro enterprises and small enterprises
Total 5,58,749.24 5,77,582.64

Note 20 Other Financial Liabilities (Current)

19.1 The average credit period on purchases of goods is 90 days. No interest is charged on overdues. The Company has
policies in place to ensure that all payables are paid within the pre-agreed credit terms.

Particulars As at 31 March 2020 | As at 31 March 2019
Rs. Rs.
(a) Payable on Purchase of Property,Plant and Equipment 2,737.25 3,935.67
(b) Deposits Recelved from Customers/Others 201.20 193.70
(c) Interest accrued and not due on Borrowings = 202.27
(d) Other Derivative Liabilities = 6,774.15
Total 2,938.44 11,105.79
MNote 21 Provisions (Current)
[
Particulars As at 31 March 2020 | As at 31 March 2019
Rs. Rs.
(a) Provision for Employee Benefits:
Provision for Gratuity (Refer Note 31.2) 36.14 3.55
Provision for Compensated Absences (Refer Note 31.2) 799.31 349.15
Total 835.45 352.70
Mote 22 Other Current Liabilities
Particulars As at 31 March 2020 | As at 31 March 2019
Rs. Rs.
_|(2) Deferred Rent (Refer Note 34) = 87.00
{b) Advance from Customers 3.28 48.11
pY(c) Statutory Remittances (Contributions to PF and ESI, 20,619.91 21,281.47
\ Withhelding Taxes, Excise Duty, VAT, Service Tax, GST etc.)
- | Total 20,623.19 21,416.58
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020
(All amounts in INR Lakhs, except share data or as otherwise stated)

Note 23 Revenue from Operations

For the year ended | For the year ended
Particulars 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Rs. Rs.
{a) |Sale of Products -Mobile Phones 26,39,221.91 34,27,436.64
(b) |Other Operating Revenues (Refer Note (i) below) 24,333.93 7,102.25
Total 26,63,555.84 34,34,538.89
For the year ended | For the year ended
Note Particulars 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Rs. Rs.
(i) |Other Operating Revenues:
Sale of Raw Materials 21,998.63 4,998.04
Sale of Scrap 1,884.41 1,872.96
Insurance claim 101.00 =
Income from Development and Support Services 306.71 220.90
Merchandise Export from India Scheme 43.18 10.35
Total - Other Operating Revenues 24,333.94 7,102.25
23.1 Disaggregated revenue information:
Based on the management approach as defined in IND AS 108 - Operating Segments, the Chief Operating
Decision Maker (CODM) evaluates the Company's performance and allocates resources based on an analysis
of various performance indicators by business segments. Accordingly, the Company has identified only one
segment as reportable segment. (Refer Note 32)
23.2 |Trade Receivables and Contract Balances
The Company classifies the right to consideration in exchange for deliverables as a trade receivable. A
receivable is a right to consideration that is unconditional upon passage of time. In case of customers where
the credit is allowed, the same is disclosed in Note 10 - Trade Receivables.
23.3 |Transaction price allocated to the remaining performance obligation:
Applying the practical expedient as given in Ind AS 115, the Company has not disclosed the remaining
performance obligation related disclosures for contracts where the revenue recognized corresponds directly
with the value to the customer of the entity's performance completed to date, typically those cantracts where
invoicing is on time and material basis.
23.4 |Information about major customers :

Customers from whom the revenue is more than 10 % of the revenue from external customers of the

company are as follows:

Name of the Customers

For the year ended
31 March 2020

For the year ended
31 March 2019

Customer A 23,50,149.21 30,09,465.41
Customer B 1,50,988.69 4,09,023.22
Others* 1,38,084.01 8,548.02
Total 26,39,221.91 34,27,436.64

* The Company has no other customers fram whom the revenue is more than 10 % o

external customers of the company.

Mote 24 Other Income

the revenue from

Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Rs. Rs.
(@) |Interest Income (Refer Note (i) below) 3,372.56 4,698.42
(b) |Profit on termination of leases 4.26 -~ "
Total 3,376.82 4,698.42
Note Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Rs. Rs.
(i) Interest Income Comprises:
From Banks - Fixed Deposits 3,104.83 4,400.17
Security Deposits carried at amortised cost 130.64 248,93
Others 137.09 49,32
Total - Interest income 3,372.56 4,698.42
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(All amounts in INR Lakhs, except share data or as otherwise stated)

Note 25 Cost of Materials Consumed

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2020

For the year ended
31 March 2019

Rs. Rs.
(a) Opening Stock 2,46,514.68 2,85,713.50
(b) Add: Purchases 23,99,149.18 32,57,183.88
26,45,663.86 35,42,897.38
(c) Less: Closing Stock (Refer Note 9 (a)) 1,79,117.91 2,46,514.68

Cost of Materials Consumed

24,66,545.95

32,96,382.70

Note 26 Changes in Inventories of Finished Goods and Work-in-progress

For the year ended

For the year ended
31 March 2019

Particulars 31 March 2020
Rs. Rs.
(a) Inventories at the End of the Year: (Refer Note 9)
Finished Goods 18,941.58 30,403.62
Work-in-progress 20,919.36 32,721.56
39,860.94 63,125.18
(b)Inventories at the Beginning of the Year:
Finished Goods 30,403.62 13,385.98
Work-in-progress 32,721.56 20,138.71
63,125.18 33,524.69
Net Decrease / (Increase) 23,264.24 (29,600.49)

Note 27 Employee Benefits Expenses

For the year ended

For the year ended
31 March 2019

Particulars 31 March 2020
Rs. Rs.
(a) Salaries, Wages and Bonus 16,274.59 17,254.55
(b) Contributions to Provident and Other Funds (Refer Note 31.1) 938.11 704.64
(c) Gratuity Expenses (Refer Note 31.2) 273.44 226.98
(d) Staff Welfare Expenses 10,089.27 11,110.45
Total 27,575.41 29,296.62
Note 28 Finance Costs
Particulars For the year ended Fo;:l;:le ye:rzzrlc;ed
31 March 2020 el
Rs. Rs.
(a) Interest expense on:
(i) Borrowings 1,981.04 5,792.81
(ii} Lease Liabilities 546.64 -
(iii) Others 284.88 463.20
Total 2,812.56 6,256.01

SETIE

S
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(All amounts in INR Lakhs, except share data or as otherwise stated)

Note 29 Other Expenses

Particulars For the year ended Far the year ended

31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Rs. Rs.

(2) |[Consumption of Stores and Spare Parts 4,903.35 3,905.84
(b) |Consumption of packing materials 626.84 636.06
(c) |Power and Fuel 4,063.48 3,985.75
(d) [Rent including Lease Rentals (Refer Note 34) 1,451.25 4,534.08
(e) |Repairs and Maintenance - Buildings 374.72 314.93
- Machinery 3,337.50 2,894.43
- Others 1,882.78 1,560.68
(f) [Insurance 615.89 482.65
(g) |Chemical charges 465.91 458.79
(h) |Rates and Taxes 21.68 506.30
(i) [Communication 145.30 193.95
(i) |Travelling and Conveyance 5,638.20 6,127.90
(k) |Printing and Stationery 132.06 189.10
(1) [Rayalty 49.33 11,467.76
(m)|Business Promotion Expenses 25.56 48.86
(n) |Contract Charges 25,908.55 25,969.53
(o) |Legal and Professional Charges 366.00 251.42
(p) |Payments to Auditors (Refer Note (ii) below) 39.50 37.50
(q) |[Loss on Property,plant and equipment Sold / Scrapped / Written Off (Net) 369.53 1,032.77
(r) [Membership Subscription 179.154 115.65
(s) |Water 249,22 250.83
(t) |Testing and Processing Charges 504.78 556.36
(u) |Loss on Foreign Currency Transactions and Translation (Net) 23,234.86 72,056.74
(v) |Bank charges 655.44 4,831.07
(w) |Security Charges 1,362.87 1,476.90
(x) |Provision for VAT Incentive - 125.32
(Y) |Donation 0.50 30.00
(az)|Miscellaneous Expenses 230.34 344.24
Total 76,842.60 1,44,385.41

Notes:

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2020

For the year ended
31 March 2019

Payments to Auditors Comprises (net of tax input credit):
To Statutory Auditors
For Statutory Audit r
For Tax Audit
For Group Reporting
For Other Services

Total

Rs. Rs.
20.00 20.00
3.00 3.00
12.50 12.50
4.00 2.00
39.50 37.50
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' Rising Stars Mobile India Private Limited
Motes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020
All amounts in INR Lakhs, except share data or as otherwise stated)
31 Employee Benefits .
31.1 |Defined Contribution Plan
The Company makes Provident Fund and Employee State Insurance Scheme contributions which are defined contribution plans, for qualifying employees. Under the
Schemes, the Company Is required to contribute a specified percentage of the payroll costs to fund the benefits. The Company recognised Rs. 938.11 lakhs (Year
ended 31 March, 2019 Rs. 704.64 lakhs) for Provident Fund contributions in the Statement of Profit and Loss. The contributions payable to these plans by the
Company are at rates specified in the rules of the schemes.
Company's (employer's) contribution to Defined Contribution Plans recognised as expenses in the Statement of Profit and Loss are:
For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Rs. Rs.
Employer's Contribution to Provident Fund and Employee State Insurance 938.11 704.64
Total 938.11 704.64
31.2 |Defined Benefit Plans
The Company operates a gratuity plan covering qualifying employees, The benefit payable is the greater of the amount calculated as per the Payment of Gratuity
Act, 1972 or the Company scheme applicable to the employee. The benefit vests upen completion of five years of continuous service and once vested it is payable to
employees on retirement or on termination of employment. In case of death while in service, the gratuity is payable irrespective of vesting,
These plans typically expose the Company to actuarial risks such as: investment risk, interest rate risk, longevity risk and salary risk.
Investment risk The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated using a discount rate which is determined by reference to
market yields at the end of the reporting period on government bonds. If the return on plan assat is below this rate, it will create
a plan deficit.
Interest risk R : s ’ ; .
A decrease in the bond interest rate will increase the plan liability; however, this will be partially offset by an increase in the
return on the plan’s investments.
Longevity risk e
The present value of the defined benefit plan liability Is calculated by refersnce to the best estimate of the mortality of plan
participants both during and after their employment. An increase in the life expectancy of the plan participants will increase the
plan’s liability,
Salary risk The present value of the defined benefit plan liabillty is calculated by reference to the future salaries of plan participants. As
such, an increase in the salary of the plan participants will increase the plan’s liability.
In respect of the above plans, the most recent actuarial valuation of the plan assets and the present value of the defined benefit obligation were carried out as at
March 31, 2020 by an independent member firm of the Institute of Actuaries of India. The present value of the defined benefit obligation, and the related current
service cost and past service cost, were measured using the projected unit credit method.
(a) Amount recognised in the total comprehensive income in respect of the defined benefit plan are as follows :
For the year ended | For the year ended
Particulars 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Rs. Rs.
Gratuity:
Service Cost
- Current Service Cost 238.14 212.23
- Interest expense on Defined Benefit Obligation 35.30 14.75
- Interest income on plan assets - -
Components of defined benefit costs recognised in profit or loss (A) 273.44 226.98
Remeasurement on the net defined benefit liability :
Actuarial loss arising from changes In financial assumptions (68.83) 114.38
actuarial (gains) arising from experience adjustments 65.07 (74.43)
Components of defined benefit costs recognised in other compr iveir (B) (3.76) 39.95
Total {A) + (B) 269.68 266.93
(i) The current service cost and interest expense for the year are included in the "Employee Benefit Expenses” line item in the statement of profit & loss under
contribution to provident and other funds.
(il) The remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability is included in other comprehensive income,
(b) The amount included in the balance sheet arising from the entity's obligation in respect of defined benefit plan is as follows :
Particulars As at 31 March 2020 | As at 31 March 2019
Rs. Rs.
Net Asset/(Liability) recognised in the Balance Sheet:
Gratuity:
Present value of defined benefit obligation 701.12 458,44
Fair value of plan assets - =
Deficit/ (Surplus) 701.12 458.44
LSKIN. nt portion of the above 36.14 255 -
rent portion of the above 664,98 454.89
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020

All amounts in INR Lakhs, except share data or as otherwise stated)

(c) Movement in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are as follows :

For the year ended | For the year ended

Particulars 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Rs. Rs.

Change in the obligation during the year:
Gratuity:
Present value of defined benefit cbligation at the beginning of the year 458.44 191.51
Expenses Recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss:
- Current Service Cost 238.14 212.23
- Interest Expense (Income) 35.30 14,75

Recognised in Other Comprehensive Income
Remeasurament gains / (losses)
- Actuarial Gain (Loss) arising from:

i. Financial Assumptions (68.83) 114.38

ii, Experience Adjustments 65.07 (74.43)
Benefit payments (27.01) =
Presaent value of defined benefit obligation at the end of the year 701.11 458.44

(d) The principal assumptions used for the purpose of actuarial valuation were as follows :

Particulars As at 31 March 2020 | As at 31 March 2019
Rs, Rs,
Gratuity:
Discount rate 7.00% 7.70%
Expected rate of salary increase 12.50% 15.00%
Expectad return on plan assets = &
Withdrawal Rate 22.00% 22.00%
Mortality TALM (2012-14) TALM (2006-D8)
(e) Experience Adjustments on Present Value of Benefit Obligation and Plan Assets
: For the Period Ended

eR:ticulteg 31-Mar-18 31-Mar-19 31-Mar-20
{Gain)/Loss on Flan Liabilities -104 .46 -74.43 65.07
% of Cpening Plan Liabilities -103.87% -38.86% 14.20%
Gain/{Loss} on Plan Assets = = =
% of Opening Plan Assets 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%

{f) Significant actuarial assumptions for the determination of defined obligation are discount rate, expected salary increase rate and withdrawal rate. The sensitivity
analysis below have been determined based on reasonably possible changes for a 100 bais points of the respective assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting
period while haolding all other assurmptions canstant :

In respect of Gratuity:

Particulars Defined Benefit Def_ined_ Benefit
Obligation (2019-20) |Obligation (2018-19)
Under Base Scenario 701.11 458.44
Salary Escalation (Up by 1% 744.38 490.31
Salary Escalation (Down by 1%) 661.05 429.00
Withdrawal Rates (Up by 1%} £80.60 438.90
Withdrawal Rates (Down by 1%) 722.98 479.44
Discount Rates (Up by 1%) 662.46 429.13
Discount Rates {Down by 1%) 743.85 491.07

The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be representative of the actual change in the defined benefit obligations as it is uniikely that the change in
assumptions would occur in isolation of one another as some of the assumptions may be correlated,

Furthermore, in presenting the above sensitivity analysis the present value of defined benefit obligation has been calculated using the projected unit credit (PUC)
method at the end of the reporting period which is the same as that applied in calculating the defined benefit obligation liability recognised in the balance sheet.
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(a)

Operating Segments:

31.3 |Compensated Absences
The key assumptions used in the computation of provision far compensated absences as per the actuarial valuation done by an Independent Actuary are as given
below:
Paticalars As at 31 March 2020 | As at 31 March 2019
Rs. Rs.
Assumptions
Discount Rate 7.00% 7.70%
Future Salary Increase 12.50% 15.00%
|Attrition Rate 22.00% 22.00%
32 Seg t Reporting

The Company operates in only one operating segment, the business of manufacturing of mobile phones. All assats, liabilities, revenue and expenses are ralated to

their one-segment activities.

Geographical Segments:

Particulars

For the yearfended
31 March 2020

For the year ended
31 March 2019

Rs.

Rs.

Revenue from operations by market
- India

26,62,715.44

34,30,158.26

- Others 840.41 4,380.63
Total 26,63,555.84 34‘34‘538.39
Segment Assets

- India 8,37,309.03 8,62,619.81

- Others 17,196.04 2,750.29
Total 8,54,505.07) _____ 8,65370.10]
Capital Expenditure

- India 20,545.85 57,843.03

- Others = n
Total 20,545.85 57,843.03]
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MNotes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020
(All amounts in INR Lakhs, except share data or as otherwise stated)
33 Disclasure in respact of related parties pursuant to Indian Accounting Standard 24 (Contd.)
33.2 Transactions with the related parties
Particulars Related party 2019-20 2018-19
Rs. Rs.
Income
Interest Income FIH India Develcper Put Ltd 121.12 36.16
Reimbursement of Expense FIH India Developer Pyt Ltd F 192.96
received
Sales FIH (Hong Kong}) Limited 319.60 583.24 |
Fulaijing Precision Electronics (Beijing) Co Lid 78.50 1,869.85 |
Great Promete Limited 20,677.25 552.65 |
||Foxconn Interconnect Technology Singapors Pte Lid 21.38 >
Innocom Electronics India Private Limited 52 -
Foxconn Technolggy India Private Limited 72 -
Cheng Usi Precision Industry Co.,Ltd 17.71 -
Guizhou Fih Precision Electronics Co.Ltd 162.08 84.98
Expenses (gross of withholding tax wherever applicable)
Purchase / (Purchase Returns) of |15t Special Material InternationalHoldings LTD 15.23 142.99
Raw Materials (including stares 731.12 1,022.02
and consumablas) 24,105.69 66,877.64
Foxconn Interconnect Technolegy Singapore Pte Lid 267.41 2,674.76
Foxconn Technology Co Ltd 13.02 222.07
Futaijing Precision Electronics (Beljing) Co Ltd = 7.15
Garuda Internatienal Limited 74,17 2,249.07
Limitad = 384.14
Great Promote Limited 5,215.31 75,144.56
Shih Hua Technplogy Ltd. = 1,255.03 |
PAN-INTERNATIONAL INDUSTRIAL CORP 552.39 33.89
INNCLUX CORPORATION 745.08 1,259.13
FITIPOWER INTEGRATED TECHNOLOGY INC. 0.71 10.65
Futaihua Industrial (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. - .53
FIH SINGAPORE TRADING PTE LTD = 11452
GUIZHCOU FIH PRECISION ELECTRONICSCO.LTD - 0.42
VIEW GREAT LIMITED 2,580.36 4 p
SHARP HONG KONG LIMITED - 4,068.04
Cheng Uei Precision Industry Co.,Ltd s 1,564.06 |
SHIH HUA TECHNOLOGY LTD. 85.12 =
UR MATERIALS INDUSTRY [SHENZHEN) 149.25 =
FORTUNEBAY TECHNOLOGY PTE.LTD. 5,803.74 =
Rent F’IH India Developer Pvit Lid 1,465.20 1,584 36
Reimbursement of axpense paid  |FIH India Developer Pvt Ltd 3,328.78 3,110.60
FIH India Frivate Limited 2.62 5.77
Othar Expenses JUSDA INDLA SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT 2.743.06 €. 447,19
15t Special Material International 7.81 -
FIH (Heng Kang) Limited 269.78 b
FIH Precision Electronics {Langfang) Limited 185.94 -
[Foxconn Technology India PvE Ltd 193.18 -
Foxconn Technelogy Co Ltd 1.60
GREAT PROMOTE LIMITED 113.75 ir
GUIZHOWU FIH PRECISION ELECTRONICS 3.81 =
INNOLUX CORPORATION 861.67 =
Sharp Business Systems India 42.88 wd
SHIH HUA TECHNOLOGY LTD. : 3.29 =
Key Management Personnel
Liu Chien Liang (Director) 18.00 18.00
Others
Purchase/(Furchase Raturns) Competition Team Tachnology (India) Pvt Ltd - 1.27
of Capital Goods |FIH (Hong Kong) Limited 1,459.02 21.07
FIH India Developer Pvt Ltd 11.81 3
FIH Precision Electronics {Langfang) Limited 285.87 2,325.17
FOXTEQ SERVICES INDIA PVT.LTD. 1,77 ¥
FUSHAN TECHNOLOGY {VIETNAM} 47.80
Guizhou FIH Precision Electranics 788.79 28.97
Greal Promote Limited 1,365.34 580.84
Hong Fu Jin Precision ndus Shenzen} Co., itd - £9.28
FUTADIING PRECISION ELECTRONICS 51.42 48.18
JUSDA INDIA SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT = 67.97
Sharp Business Systems India - 20.44
TNS Mobile India Pyt Lid = = 356.80
Allotmeant of Shares Wonderful Stars Pte Limited 71,500.00 36.802.29
Aptech Electronics Fta Limited 0.30 0.21




(All amounts in INR Lakhs, except share data or as otherwise stated)

33 Disclosure in respect of related parties pursuant to Indian Accounting Standard 24 (Contd.)

Rising Stars Mobile India Private Limited
Naotes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020

33.2 Transactions with the related parties

. As at As at
Particulars Related party 21 March 2020 | 31 Ma 201
Rs. Rs.
Raceivables {Including
gorttaciually reimbursable FIH Tndia Developer Private Ltd - 707.71
expEnsas)
taijing Precisi | ni iiin | 9.44 1,784 62
GREAT PROMOTE LIMITED 18,372.09 277.834
FIH (HONG KONG) LTD 65.46 568,44
GUT ZHOU FIH PRECISION ELECTRONIC CO LTD 4.20 56.37
Innocom Electronics India Private Limited 8.72 =
BEST EVER INDUSTRIES LIMITED = 0.47
Foxconn Hon Hai Technology 44.00
FOXCONN TECHNOLOGY (INDIAY PVT LTD 2.69
Short Term Lean FIH India Developar Private Ltd 1,500.00 2300.00
Lease Depasits FIH India Developer Private Ltd 678.70 703.95
Accrued [nterest on Loan FIH India Developer Private Ltd 160.61 -
Liahilities ns at Year End
Payables (net of TDS wherever FIH (HONG KONG) LTD 2,528.02 17,023.04
applicable) FIH Precision Electronics (Langfang) Limited 13.80 129.53
Hongfujin Precision Electronics (Zhenghou} co Itd 4.94 =
FIH India Private Limited 2.67 0.50
FIH India Developer Private Ltd L 344.65
Best Ever Industries Limited 56.21 "
Foxconn Intercennect Technology Singapere Pte Lid. 33.39 68,60
Fo. T L 1.60 S58.10
Great Promote Limited 10,366.63 37,718.65
! Lid 32.04 42.40
15t Special Material International 0.07 1.65
Fushan Technoloay (Vietnam) = 31,51
FUSHAN TECHNOLOGY (\-'IFI'NAP@ 4.39 116.67
Cheng Uei Precision Industry Co Ltd - 113.68
Futaihua Industry [Shenzhen)Co.,Ltd 5.24
Garuda International Limited 5 281.45 |
Innolux Corporation 0.04 254.87
Jusda India Supply Chain Management 68.41 293.77
Pan-International Industrial Corp 292.8% 10.53
Fitipower Integrated Tachnolegy [nc. - 0.54
View Great Limited 352.48 91.53
Guizhou Fih Pracision Electronics 125.64 9.30
UR MATERIALS INDUSTRY (SHENZHEN) CO LTD 55.17 =
Payable on Purchase of Hoengfujin Precision El ni nohou) co ltd # 4.54
Froperty, Plant & Equip t FIH (HONG KONG) LTD = 6.55
GUIZHOU FIH PRECISION ELECTRONICS - 1,003.31
GREAT PROMOQTE LIMITED = £
Sharp Business Systems India 3.51 274




Higing Stars Mobile India Private Limited

Metes to the financial statements for the year endod 31 March 2020
(Al amaunts in TN Lakhs, ekeapt share dats of a8 othenvise stated)

EE] Ohlisations Towards Oparating Leases.
The Company has agoptad IND AS 116 ‘Leases” with atfect from Apell 01, 2019, Ind 45 116 replaces Ind 45 17 = Laacqs and ralated interpretetion ard g dance,
The Campany has appied Ind AS 116 using the modifed retraspective appraach which rasulted in recognition of RIght of Use Ascet (AOUY and aquivalan: Leass|
Liabilicy af Rz, 8,550.57 Lakhs.
A, Gread-up of currert and non -currant isase labelitis
Current lease Sabilities
Isaga lishitins
tions
Finance costs accrued durina the ceriad
Calatians
Payment of Legge lind dities
[Total
. The tabla below provides detalls reaarding the contractual maturities of fe
Lass than one year
an 1o five vears
Mara than five years
0. Amounts recoanized in scatement of orofit and loss
ul
Intarest an eaze labilites
Warable lease payments not included in the Masa paymany
lisbilities.
Incame from sub-less ing rabt of e assats
Expersas ralating to short- tarm |aases
Expansos ralsting to leaces of low- value assets excluding
ahort tarem |egses OF oW value aE5etE
35 Earnings per Share
For the Year Ended | For the Year Ended
31 March 2020 31 March 1019
Profit aftar Tax - Rs. 38,971.33 122.153.01)
‘Waolghtad avarage nembar of Equity Shares 18.74,97.504 14,10.64,821
Earnings ger Shara - Basic m 0.78 (15,720}
- Diluted in Rs. 0.78 (15,70}
Fage vplyn par Share - in As. 100.00 0700
36 Taxation
36,1 Current Tax
For the Year Ended | T
Particulars 31 March 2020 31 March 1019
As. 3
Current Tan;
(Current Incorme Tax Charge 10,268.21 -
Total 10,266.31 =
Deferred Taw
Oifference between book batance and tax halanes of praparty, plant and cquipment 13,287.30) 3.684,03
In respact of current yaar arigination and reversal of temocrary differences 4.085.83 (4.333.26)
Fravision for compensated a0 pances, gratuity and othes emplayes banaefits (B27.67) (704,93}
Pravizien far VAT Incartiva . 143.79)
Unabsarbed deoreciation and brouaht farward loss 561502 (5.515.82)
Others 7.35 (259.08)
feversal of Het OTA restricted o the extent of DTL 17.555.89) 7,553.89
Reversal/utifisation of MAT Credit . 987,53
Tatal Tk EE;E! Lﬁ
Total tax expe; i in of profit and loss 8,366.15 1,168.57
36,2 The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the accounting profit as fallows:
For the year ended 31 March 2020 For the year ended 31 March 2018
Paiuers Rmaunt Tax Amaunt Ameunt Tar Amount
Rs. Rs. R, Rs.
Prafit Befors tax from Cperations 47, 337,48 16,541,861 [20,558.40) &
Tneoma Tax using tha Company®s Tax rate sl 34.944%
Tax Effact of
Effact of previausly unrecognised and unused tex iosses and
rempocary diffs W d as dafarrad
tax assats {21,619.51) (7,583.09) - -
Effect of axpenses that are not d eductible in determining
taxable nrofit 366282 1,279.79 3,344.11 1,168.57
Adjustmaent recognisad |n the currant year in ralation to the
current incame tax of priar years 3 . + .
Effact of Other Adjustments - . % -
10,267.51 1,168.57
36.3  Incoms Tax on Other Comprahensive ITncome:
For the Vear Ended | Far tho Year Ended |
Particulars 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Rs. N
Deferred Tax:
Remeasuramant of defined benehit obiigation {131 13.5%
Tatal {1.31) 13.96




Rising Stars Mobile India Private Limited .
MNotes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020
{All amounts in INR Lakhs, except share data or as otherwise stated)

36.4

36.5

37

IFollowing is the analysis of the deferrad tax asset/(liabilities) pr

d in the Bal

e sheet.

For the year ended 31 March 2020

Rs.
Particulars MAT Credit
Opening Recognised in| Recognised in| utilsiation/Other Closing
balance Profit & Loss ocI adjustments balance
Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax liabilities:
Difference between depreciation as per Books of Account and
Income Tax Act, 1961 5,534.57 (3,257.30) - - 2,277.27
Deferred Tax Liabilities (DTL) 5,534.57 (3,257.30) = = 2,277.27
Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax assets:
Deferred Rent 101.96 (101.96) - -
Pravision for VAT incentive receivable 438.05 - ~ 438.05
Provision for Inventory 5,838,523 (4,085.63) - - 1,752.89
Employee Benefits 841.73 257.19 (1.13) - 1,097.80
Pravisicn for Bonus 252.37 570.48 & = 822.85
Unabsorbed Depreciation and brought forward loss 5,615.82 (5,615.82) - - -
Others - IND A5 116 = 64.61 - 64.61
Reversal of net DTA restricted to the extent of DTL {7,553.89) 7,553.89 - - -
Deferred Tax Assets (DTA) 5,534.57 (1,357.24) {1.13) = 4,176.20
Net Deferred Tax Assets = (1,900.06) 1.13 = 1i893.93
For the year ended 31 March 2019
Rs.
Particulars
Opening Rec ised in| Recognised in MAT credit Closing
balance Profit & Loss 0OCI utilisation bal
Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax liabilities:
Difference between depreciation as per Books of Account and
Income Tax Act, 15961 1,850.54 3,684.03 = = 5,534.57
Employee Benefits 6.71 (6.71) - - -
Deferred Tax Liabilities 1,857.25 3,677.32 - = 5,534.57
Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax assets:
Deferred Rent 90.04 11.92 101.96
MAT Credit Entilement B887.53 (B87.53) 5 =
Provision for VAT incentive receivable 394.26 43,79 = = 438.05
Provision for Inventory 1,512.11 4,326.41 - - 5,838.53
Employee Benefits 136.80 704.93 = < 841.73
Provision for Bonus = 252.37 - = 252.37
Unabsorbed Depreciation and brought forward loss 3 5,615.82 = 5,615.82
Others 5.08 (5.08) ] =
Deferred Tax Assets 3,025.82 10,062.64 = =) 13,088.46
Net DTA restricted to the extent of DTL 7,553.89 7,553.89
Net Deferred Tax Asset 1,168.57 1,168.57 = = =

International Transactions

2020.

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)

The Company has entered into international transactions with Associated Enterprises. The Management is of the opinion that the Company maintains
the necessary documents as prescribed by the Income Tax Act, 1961 to prove that these international transactions are at arm’s length and believes that
the aforesaid legislation will not have any impact on the financial statements, particularly an the amount of tax expense for the year ended 31 March

During the year, the Company has not incurred any amount towards Corporate Social Responsibilty in compliance with Section 135 of the Companies
Act, 2013 read with relevant schedules and rules made thereunder,
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020

(All amaunts in INR Lakhs, except share data or a5 otherwise stated)

38 Financial Instruments

38.1 Capital Management

The Company manages its capital to ensyre that it is able to continue as a gaing concern while maximizing the return to the stakeholders through the optimization
of the dabt and equity balance. The Company determines the amcunt of capital required on the basis of an annual budgeting exercise, future capital projects
autlay ete, The funding requirements are met through equity, internal accruals and short term borrowings.

Gearing Ratio !
As at As at
Particulars 31 March 2020 | 31 March 2019
Rs. Rs.
Debt (Refer Noteld) 5 1,06,620.12
Cash and Cash equivalents {Refer Note 114) (1,14,534.57) {62,515.16)
Net Debt (1,14,634.57) 44,104.96
Total Equity (Refer Notes 15) 2,67 387.81 1,56,914.04
Net Debt to equity ratio ~83% 28%|
38.2 Categories of Financial Instruments
Financial Assets:
As at As at
Particulars 31 March 2020 | 31 March 2019
_Rs. RS,
Measured at amortised cost
- Security Deposits 3,381.19 2,137.41
- Trade receivables 3,76,892.97 3,59,304.81
- Cash and Cash equivalents 1,14,634.57 62,515.15
- Loans 1,563.30 846,74
- Interest on loan to related parties 121.12 52.60
- Other Receivables 376.86 29%.54
- VAT Incentive Receivable 3,161.59 3,036.67
- Interest accrued, but not due an Fixed Deposits with 69.70 15.54
banks
Total[  5,00,201.70 | 4,28,228.47 |

Financial Liabilities :

As at As at
31 March 2020 | 31 March 2019
Particulars Rs. Rs.

Measured at amortised cost
- Borrowings - 1,06,5620.12
- Trade payables 5,58,749.24 5,77,582.64
= Payable on purchase of Property, Plant & Equipment 2,737.25 3.935.67
- Deposits received from customers/ others 201.20 193.70
- Interest accrued and not due on borrowings - 202,27
- Orhar Derivative Liabilities 6,774.15

Total 5,61,687.69 6,95 308.55

383 F ial Risk Fr e

The Company is exposed to certain financial risks that could have a significant Impact on the Company's operational and financial performance. These risks include
market risk, credit risk and liguidity risk. The Company’'s treasury function provides services to the business, co-ordinates sccess to domestic and international
financial markets, moniters and manages the financial risks relating to the operations of the Company through Internal risk reports which analyse the exposure by
degree and magnitude of risks, The treasury function reports periodically to the Board of Directors of the Company, who monitors the risks and policies
implemented to mitigate the risk exposures and have the overall responsibility to ensure the same.

The Company has not offset financial assets and financial llabllities.

38.4 Market Risk:

The Company's activities exposes it primarily to the finandial risk of change in foreign currency exchange rates and intersst rates.

38.5 Foreign Currency Risk Management:

The Company undertakes transactions denominated in foreign currencies and consequently, exposures to exchange rate fluctuation arises, The Company fllows
the principle of nature hedge considering that the foreign currency exposures primarily are on account of import of capital goads/raw materials and export of
finished aoads. The Company doss not enter inte trade financial Instruments including derivative financlal Instruments for hedging its foreian currency risk. The
appropriatenass/adequacy of the natural hedaging principle is reviewed perindically with reference t the approved foreign currency risk management policy
followsd by the Company.

The carrying amounts of the Company’s foreign currency denominated monetary assets and manetary liabilities at the end of each reporting pericd are as follows :
The year-end forelgn currency exposures that have not been hedged by a derivative instrument or otherwlse are given below:

| A. Outstanding as at 31 March 2020

Amount in
Particulars Currency Foreign Currency | Rs. (in Lakhs)
(Millions)

Payables (including Payables on purchase of fixed assets) EUR 0.04 33.85
uso 230,58 1.80,564.08
plad - -

Bank Balance - EEFC usn = =

|B. Outstanding as at 31 March 2019

Amount in
Particulars Currency Foreign Currency | Rs. (in Lakhs)
{Millions)

Payables {including Payables an purchase of fixed assets) EUR .07 51.70
NEG 746.50 517, 184,81
plod 37.24 232,74

Eank Balance - EEFC usp 0.0 26,19 |
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(Al amounts in INR Lakhs, except share data or as othenwisa srated}

38.6 Foreign Curreéncy sensitivity analysis :

The Company |5 mainly expesed to the currencies of USD and EUR

The following table details the Company’s sensitivity to a 5% increase and decrease in the [NR against the relevant foreign currencies, 5% is the rate used In
arder to determine the sensitivity analysis considering the past trends and expectation of the management for changes in the foreign currency exchange rate. The
sensitivity analysis Includes the outstanding foreign currency denominated menetary ltems and adjusts thelr translation at the period end for a 5% change in
foreign currency rates. A positive number below indicates a increase in profit or equity where the INR Strengthens 5% against the relevant currency, For a 5%
weakenlng of the INR against the relevant currency, there would be a comparable impact on the profit or equity and balance balow would be negative.

(I} Impact of USD

As at As at
Particulars 31 March 2020 | 31 March 2019
RS. RS,
Impact an Profit or {Loss) for the year and
on total equity as at the end of the reporting périod
Incraase by 5% 9,028.20 25,857.93
Decrease by 5% (9,028.20) (25,857.93]
{ii} Impact of EUR
As at As at
Particulars 31 March 2020 | 31 March 2019
RS, RS.
Impact an Profit or (Loss) for the year and
on total equity as at the end of the reporting periad
Increase by 5% 1.69 2,59
Decrease by 5% {1.69) (2.59)
(iii) Impact of IPY
As at As at
Particulars 31 March 2020 | 31 March 2019
Rs. Rs.
Impact on Profit or {Loss) for the year and
Increase by 5% - 11.64
Decrease by 5% = (11.64)

Note :
This Is mainly attributable to the exposure of receivalle and payable cutstanding in the above mentloned currencies to the Company at the end of the reporting

period,

38.7 Liquidity Risk g t:

Liguidity risk refers to the risk that the Company cannot meet its financial obligations. The Company | 1 y risk by m FESErves,
banking facilities and reserve borrowing facilities, by continuously maonitoring forecast and actual cash flows and by matching maturing profiles of financial assets
and financial liabilities in accordance with the approved risk management policy of the Company. The Company invests its surplus funds in bank fixed deposits
which carry minimal mark to market rates,

Liguidity and Interest Risk Tables :

The following tables detail the Company's remaining contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial llabilities with agreed repayment periods. The tables have
been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest date an which the Company can be required to pay. The tahles)
include bath Interest and principal cash flows, To the extent that interest flows are floating rate, the undiscounted amount is derived from interest rate curves at
the end of the reporting periad, The contractual maturity is based on the sarliest date on which the Company may be required to pay.

Less than 1 3 months to 1
Particulars month l 1 to 3 months Yoar Beyond 1 Year Total
Rs.
31 March 2020
Fixgd Interest rate instruments:
Barrowings (Current) - - = 2
Non-interest bearing:
Trade Payable 1,13,845.55 2,21,591.46 3,733.03 2,25,196.17 5,64,366.21
Qther Financial [iabillties < 2,838.44 5 - 2,938.44
Total 1,13,845.55 2,24,529.90 3,733.03 2,25,196.17 5,67,304.66
31 March 2019
Eixed interest rate instriments:
Borrowings (Current) 1,06,620.12 - - - 1,06,620.12
lon-|nterest bearing:
Trade Payable 4,29,230.24 1,20,233.80 19,361.20 17,231.87 5:86,057.11
Other Financial liabilities 10,922.09 2,938.44 159.70 24.00 11,105.79
Total 5,46,772.45 1,23,172.25 19,520.90 17,255.87 7,03,783.02
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(Ml smounts In INR Lakhs excect share data or as otherwise stated)

Tha following table derails the Company's expected maturity for Its non-derivative financial assets, The table has been drawn up based on the undiscounted
contractual maturities of the financial assets including interest that will be earmed on those assets, The Inclusion of information on non-derivative financial assets

is necessary In order to und: d the Company’s lig ¥ risk as the liquidity is managed on a net asset and liability basis.
ey
Lass than 1 32 months to 1
Particulars menth Ais 3 monthe Yeur J_‘Wﬂ 900 ol
fis.
31 March 2020
Cash in hand .45 = = = 0.45
Balances with Banks hedd In Current Accounts 3,134.12 = < = 3,134.12
Trade Receivables 3,46,651 46 10,534.25 19,574.25 133.02 3,76,892,97
Loans to Related Partles = 700.00 B00.00 1,500.00
Advances to Employees 63.30 r o - 63.30
Other Financial Assets 567.67 6,543.18 7,110,885
Fized interest rate nstruments
Fixed Deposits = 1,11,500.00 . 1,41,500.00
Totat 3,50,416.89 | 12203425 30,274.25 7.476.19 5.00.201.68
31 March 2019
Nor-interest bearing.
Cash in hand 0.52 = = * 0.52
Balances with Banks held In Current Accounts 5,814.64 = - 5.814.64
Trade Receivables 3,58,054.09 987.20 263.52 - 3,59,304.81
Loans to Related Parties : = 400.00 . 400,00 §00.00
Advances to Employees 46,74 - = - 46.74
Other Financial Assets 910.21 % 1 4,650.55 5,560.76
Fixed joterest rate INstryments
Fized Deposits 56,700.00 - = £ 56,700.00
Total 4,21,526.20 1,387.20 63,52 5.050,55 4,28,237.47

Nan-intersst rate bearing financial assets disclozed above Inludes Investments, Trade Receivable, Cash, balances with banks held in current accounts and EEFC
. Loans and Other Financial Assets.

with hanks held In depasit accounts.

Flxed Interast rate instruments discl above

The amounts included above for variable interest rate for both ive fi | assets and liabilities s subject to change If changes In variable;
interest rates differ ta those estimates of interest rates determined at the end of the reparting pericd.

38.8 Credit Risk:

Credit risk refers to the risk that a customer or a counterparty will default on |ts contractual gina | losa to the Company. The Company|

has adopted a policy of oniy dealing with creditwrothy counterparties and obtaining sufficlent collaterai, whare appropriate, as a means of mitigating the risk off

(Minancial loss frem defaults, The C oy with entities that are rated the sguivalent of investmant grade and above, The company uses pubiicly]

tavallable ﬂanniai hfurrnaﬂan and Its own trading records to rate jts major Tha Company's exp and the credit ratings of its counterparties are;
¥ 4 and the aggregate value of transactions concluded is spread paroved « tles.

The cradit risk on receivables from agancles/, is minimal the gn nature of the recaivables, Similarly, the credit risk on

liguid funds in banks is limited cansidering that the :num:rpardes are banks with high credit ratings and repute,

As per the policy, the C makes an al for r cl using expected credit foss modej on a case to case basis.

The carrying amount of the financlal assets recorded in these financial stztements, grossed up for any alk w for fosses, rep the P o

credit risk.

Mona of the Company's cash equivalents, Including depasits with bank, are past due or Imp garrding the trade hies, other loans and receivables

that are nelther Impaired nor past due, there were no indicators as at 31 March 2020 that 1ts in will accur,

39 Fair Valua Measurament

39.1 Financial assets and fi il that ara i at fair value on a recurring basls
Financial assets and Ranancial liabilities measuread at fair value In the statement of financial position are grouped Into three Levels of a falr value hierarchy. The
thiree levels are defined based on the observabillty of signiflcant inputs to the measurements:

*Level 1 - Quoted price In an active market
*Lavel 2 - Discounted cash flow. Futute cash Rows are estimated based on forward exchang rates and contract rates, discounted at a rate that reflects the credit

risk of various counterparties.
*avel 3 - Discounted cash fow method 15 used to capture the presant value of the expected future economic benefits that will flow to the company.

Thera have been no transfers between Level land Level 2 for the year ended 31 March 2020 and 21 March 2015,

39.2F assets and fi jal |labilities that are not measured at fair value ;

The Management considers that the earrying amount of all the financiai 2sset and financial liabilites that are not measured at falr value In the financial
statements approximate the fair values and, accordingly, no disclosures of the falr value hierarchy is required to be made in respect of these assetsyliabilities.




Rising Stars Mobile India Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020

40

41

Estimatation uncertainity during COVID-19 outbreak

The Company has considered internal and certain external sources of information including credit reports, economic forecasts and
industry reports up to the date of approval of the financial statements in determining the Impact on various elements of its financial
statements. The Company has used the principles of prudence in applying judgments, estimates and assumptions including sensitivity
analysis and based on the current estimates, the Company expects to fully recover the carrying amount of Trade receivables,
Inventories, Other financial assets, Other current assets. The eventual outcome of impact of the global health pandemic may be
different from those estimated as on the date of approval of these financial statements.

Approval of Financial Statements

In connection with the preparation of the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2020, the Board of Directors have
confirmed the propriety of the contracts / agreements entered into by / on behalf of the Company and the resultant revenue earned /
expenses incurred arising out of the same after reviewing the levels of authorisation and the available documentary evidences and the
overall control environment. Further, the Board of Directors have also reviewed the realizable value of all the current assets of the
Company and have confirmed that the value of such assets in the ordinary course of business wlll not be less than the value at which
these are recognised In the standalone financial statements. In addition, the Board has also confirmed the carrying value of the non-
current assets In the financlal statements. The Board, duly taking into account all the relevant disclosures made, has approved these
standalone Ind AS financial statements in its meeting held on November 30, 2020

an behaif of the Board of Directors

So " -

LY

Yang Shu Hui Liu Chien Liang Ramachandran Kunnath
Director Director Company Sacratary
Place : Chennal Place : Talwan Place : Chennai

Date : November 30, 2020 Date : November 30, 2020 Date : Novemnber 30, 2020
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